IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CITIZENS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, Appellants,))		
v.	CASE I	NO. 76	,000
MICHAEL MCK. WILSON, ETC., ET AL., Appellees.)))		

ON APPEAL OF ORDER NO. 22812
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 900002-EG
PETITION OF TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANTS, CITIZENS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Jack Shreve Public Counsel Fla. Bar No. 0073522

John Roger Howe Assistant Public Counsel Fla. Bar No. 253911

Office of Public Counsel c/o The Florida Legislature 111 W. Madison Street Room 812 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1400

904/488-9330

Attorneys for the Citizens of the State of Florida

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This is an appeal of Public Service Commission (PSC) Order No. 22812 authorizing Tampa Electric Company (TECO) to modify the way the utility imposes conservation cost recovery factors on the electric bills of its customers. [R-181] TECO was allowed to exclude industrial customers who take service pursuant to interruptible rate schedules and collect all the costs of its conservation programs from its firm customers during the period April 1, 1990, through March 31, 1991. Orders approving the same /recovery procedures for April 1, 1989, through March 31, 1990, are before the Court in Citizens of the State of Florida v. Michael McK. Wilson, etc., et al., Case No. 74,471. Oral argument was heard on February 8, 1990.

In 1980, the Legislature enacted the Florida Energy Efficiency and Conservation Act (FEECA), Sections 366.80, et seq., Florida Statutes (1989). Pursuant to FEECA, the PSC approved programs for electric utilities designed to reduce weather-sensitive peak demand and the growth rate in electricity usage. Program costs are recovered through a conservation cost recovery factor projected for six-month periods. Over- and underrecoveries are used to adjust succeeding projection periods. In February the Commission conducts

^{&#}x27;References to volume I of the record are designated by an R followed by a page number, e.g. [R-23] Transcripts of the prehearing conference and hearing are in volume 11. References to the transcript of the prehearing conference are designated by the letter T with a parenthetical reference to the prehearing conference and a page number, e.g. [T(prehearing)-12]. References to the hearing are designated by the letter T, alone, with a page number, e.g. [T-172].

hearings to set factors for the April through September period and in August holds hearings for the October through March period.

In one of its first orders in the conservation docket, the PSC decided costs should be recovered equally from all customers on a per-kilowatt-hour basis. Order No. 9974, dated April 24, 1981, reported as In re: Conservation Cost Recovery Clause, 81 F.P.S.C. 4:154 (1981). This policy was followed consistently until the PSC issued Order No. 20825 on March 1, 1989. In re: Petition of Tampa Electric Company for Modification of its Conservation Cost Recovery Methodolosy, 89 F.P.S.C. 3:15 (1989). That order approved TECO's October 28, 1988, petition to modify its conservation cost recovery methodology, but limited its duration to one year. TECO filed a tariff effective April 3, 1989, pursuant to Order No. 20825.

Public Counsel moved for reconsideration of Order No. 20825 alleging: (1) that the PSC mistakenly issued a final order after it had voted at agenda conference to issue a notice of proposed agency action; (2) that the order was invalid under the Administrative Procedure Act, Chapter 120, Florida Statutes, since a clear point of entry had not been offered; and (3) that the order violated FEECA. The motion for reconsideration was denied in Order NO. 21448 on June 26, 1989. In re: Petition of Tampa Electric Company for Modification of its Conservation Cost Recovery Methodolosy, 89 F.P.S.C. 6:476 (1989).

The PSC concluded, among other things, that Order No. 20825 was "in a very real sense surplusage." 89 F.P.S.C. 6:477. The PSC had not voted on TECO's petition until January 31, 1989.

Therefore, the tariff appended to TECO's petition had gone into effect automatically upon expiration of the 60-day suspension period of Section 366.06(3), Florida Statutes (1987), the file-and-suspend law for electric utilities. Orders Nos. 20825 and 21448 were appealed on July 26, 1989. Citizens v. Wilson, supra.

On December 21, 1989, TECO petitioned to extend the provisions of Order No. 20825 through March 31, 1991. (R-23) The prepared direct testimony of Mr. Gerard J. Kordecki was filed in support of the petition. [R-28]

On January 16, 1990, Public Counsel filed a motion to dismiss, alleging that TECO's petition was premised upon the fact that its current tariff was only in effect until March 31, 1990. [R-78] Public Counsel maintained that the PSC, however, had concluded in Order No. 21448 that the tariff accompanying TECO's original petition, which was not limited in duration, had gone into effect automatically. The order pursuant to which TECO filed another tariff had been characterized by the PSC in its later order as "surplusage." Since a tariff of indefinite duration had gone into effect automatically, it was Public Counsel's contention that there was nothing to extend.

The motion to dismiss also asserted that the petition was inconsistent with the PSC's position before the Court that modification of TECO's recovery methodology could not violate nonrule policy because it only applied to one utility and was only in effect for one year. Additionally, Public Counsel contended that TECO's petition failed to address fuel benefits of the avoided

combustion turbine (CT) unit that Order No. 20825 said would have to be considered in 1990. Further, Public Counsel asserted TECO had failed to explain how its petition could be granted without violating FEECA.

On January 22, 1990, the Florida Industrial Power Users Group (FIPUG), an ad hoc group of large industrial customers, petitioned to intervene. [R-120] On January 24, 1990, TECO filed a motion to strike and response to Public Counsel's motion to dismiss. [R-131] FIPUG filed a response to the motion to dismiss on January 29, 1990. [R-145] Public Counsel responded to TECO's motion on February 2, 1990. [R-154] FIPUG's intervention was granted by Order No. 22518, on February 12, 1990. [R-156]

A prehearing conference was held in the conservation docket on February 12, 1990, before Commissioner Herndon. [T(prehearing) - 13 One aspect of the motion to dismiss was Public Counsel's argument that the full Commission should consider TECO's petition because of the basic policy issue involved and because it was the full Commission that approved TECO's first petition. Commissioner Herndon decided the motion to dismiss should be heard by the three-member conservation cost recovery panel at the hearings beginning February 21, 1990. [T(prehearing) - 38] TECO's attorney withdrew his motion to strike the motion to dismiss. [T(prehearing) - 38] On January 10, 1990, TECO filed the prepared supplemental testimony of Mr. Kordecki with an exhibit addressing the recovery methodology. [T-135]

Hearings were held in the conservation docket on February 21, 1990. The three Commissioners assigned to the docket first heard Public Counsel's argument motion to dismiss. Commissioners heard from Public Counsel, TECO and FIPUG. Commissioner Herndon, the Chairman of the panel, indicated he would like to take the matter under advisement and vote at a future time. [T-22] Mr. James Dean, Bureau Chief for Conservation and System Planning in the PSC's Electric and Gas Division, advised him that the Commission usuallymade a bench decision after the conservation hearings and quick action was needed because TECO's authority expired on March 31, 1990. [T-23]

Commissioner Beard asked if staff was prepared to advise him "so that I will remain consistent with my previous positions to include the one that we are currently taking, or have taken to the Supreme Court." [T-25-26] The Commission's attorney, Ms. Marsha Rule, stated that staff thought the position taken by TECO and FIPUG was correct but would like the opportunity to confer with someone from the General Counsel's office. [T-26] Commissioner Herndon decided "to set this aside for the moment" and matters concerning other utilities were addressed. [T-26]

After the witness for Gulf Power Company was excused, TECO's attorney called Mr. Kordecki to the stand. [T-119] The attorney from the Office of Public Counsel, Mr. Howe, noted the effect on his case of the procedures the PSC was following:

Commissioner Herndon, before Mr. Kordecki begins testifying, I would like to make some comments about our ability to put on our case.

In your rules it provides for motions to dismiss, which we have filed. It also provides in Rule 25-22.037 that in the event such a motion is denied, an answer or other responsive pleading may be filed within ten days after issuance of an order denying the motion.

As I stated earlier today, and at the prehearing conference, we understood that this docket was going to be handled by the full Commission in a separate proceeding, and it had been assigned that by the Clerk. Our first notification that, in fact, that would not be the case was at the February 12th prehearing conference. The time to file testimony had already past [sic: passed]: in fact, the parties' testimony was due on January 29th of 1990. We haven't had the opportunity to develop testimony on the subject.

Now, I am prepared to cross examine Mr. Kordecki on his testimony, and that doesn't cause me any concern. But as far as an opportunity for us to put on our own direct case, we just haven't had that. And with that understanding I am prepared to proceed with the cross examination of Mr. Kordecki. [T-119-20]

Mr. Kordecki was then called as a witness. He adopted the prepared written testimony filed earlier which was "inserted into the record as though read." [T-127] He was cross-examined by Mr. Howe and by Ms. Rule for the PSC staff. [T-141-170] The Commission then returned to the motion to dismiss. [T-234]²

Another PSC attorney made a recommendation for disposition of the motion. Ms. Suzanne Brownless was the Bureau Chief for electric and gas matters in the PSC's Legal Division and Ms. Rule's direct superior; she was not a member of the separate advisory staff of the General Counsel's office. Ms. Brownless recommended that the motion to dismiss be denied. [T-235-38]

²Pages 173 through 233 of the hearing transcript contain the prefiled testimony of witnesses for other utilities which were inserted into the record upon agreement of the parties. These pages are omitted from the appellate record and have no bearing on this appeal. Discussion of TECO's request is not interrupted even though it appears to stop on page 172 and continue on page 234.

Ms. Brownless stated that the tariff TECO had filed in response to Order No. 20825 had gone into effect automatically when the PSC failed to act within 60 days. (T-236) Mr. Howe pointed out that that was not the tariff attached to TECO's original petition. (T-238-39) Ms. Brownless then said that the tariff that was appended would have been the one to take effect automatically:

(W) hat was filed with the initial petition would have gone into effect had the 60 days run and no action been taken by this Commission. [T-241]

But she concluded that she was "pretty sure that this [the April 3, 1989, tariff] is the tariff that was filed in conjunction with [TECO's] petition." [T-242]

Mr. Howe then distributed copies of TECO's October 28, 1988, petition with the attached tariff pages. [T-242] With reference to those tariff pages, Ms. Brownless said:

We specifically got a waiver from Tampa Electric Company not to act on these tariffs within 60 days. That's why they came up at the agenda on January 31st of 1989. That takes care of the first problem. So these tariffs that Mr. Howe believes went into effect never went into effect, and to my knowledge we never argued on appeal that we [sic] did. [T-247-48]

Ms. Brownless's statements were simply incorrect. TECO was never asked to waive the 60-day period and did not do so. There is no indication in the record that anyone considered that the 60-day file-and-suspend period might apply before the issue was raised at the June 6, 1989, agenda conference as a basis for denying Public Counsel's motion for reconsideration. Public Counsel's motion to dismiss was denied. [T-252] The question then arose as to how the

Commission should evaluate Mr. Kordecki's testimony. Commissioner Herndon said:

• • I would like to have some thought given to what Mr. Kordecki has said. I mean, unfortunately some of his testimony came in later than others and, while I have read it, I haven't had an opportunity to digest it. • • I thought what we were going to do is get some analysis from staff with respect to the testimony and the petition on its merits. {T-253-54}

MS. RULE: You mean just take it to a recommendation at [an] agenda [conference]? [T-254]

COMMISSIONER HERNDON: Yes.

Ms. Rule and Mr. Dean advised the Commissioner that a decision had to be reached before April 1. [T-254-55] Mr. Howe informed the Commission that, under the APA, Public Counsel had an absolute right to submit proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law. [T-256] Ms. Rule suggested that, in lieu of written submittals, Mr. Howe be given the opportunity to argue orally "right now." [T-257] Mr. Howe said he would be willing to do that. [T-257] Commissioner Herndon then asked if he could ask Mr. Dean for a recommendation based on Mr. Kordecki's testimony as well as other information:

COMMISSIONER HERNDON: Do I have the capability to ask Mr. Dean for his recommendation right now?

MS. RULE: Absolutely.

MS. BROWNLESS: Absolutely.

COMMISSIONER HERNDON: Based on what he has heard from Mr. Kordecki and any other information?

MS. BROWNLESS: Sure. [T-259]

Mr. Howe was then allowed to present his argument. [T-259-69]
Argument from the attorneys for TECO and FIPUG followed. [T-269-71]

Ms. Rule for the PSC staff made the following recommendation:

As to the legal issue, I agree with TECO and FIPUG. There is competent substantial evidence in the record. I think you have enough to go on here to make your decision. As to the factual decision, I'd like Mr. Dean to address that. [T-271]

Mr. Dean said:

The bottom line [is] that staff would support the Company's petition to exclude interruptible customers for a one-year period. I would elaborate on our reasons if you would like for me to.

COMMISSIONER HERNDON: Please. [T-271]

Mr. Dean, continued, addressing the legislative intent of FEECA and matters inside and outside the record of the proceeding. [T-271-75]

Mr. Howe had interposed an objection during Mr. Dean's presentation because he felt it had gone outside the record on which the Commissioners had to base their decision:

MR. HOWE: Objection, Commissioners. I think Staff should be limited in this situation to a recommendation based on the evidence in the record. That's what your decision must be based on, and I feel like Mr. Dean is going far afield of anything Mr. Kordecki said in his testimony.

MS. RULE: I think Staff has the same leeway in an oral recommendation that they would [have] in a written one. And if they want to bring matters of a common knowledge around the Commission to your attention, they are entitled to do so. Mr. Dean is not testifying here.

MR. HOWE: Commissioner, I'd cite you to Section 120.57, I think its (1)(b)8. It says, 'Agency decisions shall be based exclusively on evidence in the record.'

Nothing Mr. Dean has to contribute is evidence in the record.

And I think, since you must constrain your decision to evidence in the record, he should be constrained [in] his recommendation to what you have heard here today, which is the basis of TECO's position [sic: petition].

MS. RULE: I think he is pointing to evidence in the record. He is also pointing out some of the other reasons why the Commission may want to make the decision supported by the evidence in the record.

COMMISSIONER HERNDON: Go ahead, Mr. Dean. [T-272-73]

The three Commissioners voted to approve the extension sought by TECO so that all the costs of the utility's conservation programs would be borne by its firm customers until, at least, March 31, 1991. [T-287-89] The PSC approved a conservation cost recovery factor for TECO which was only applicable to firm customers. Approximately \$2 million per year in costs were shifted from TECO's interruptible customers and assigned to firm customers for recovery. The decision is reported in Order No. 22812, dated April 12, 1990. [R-181] A notice of appeal was filed on May 11, 1990. [R-189]

³Order No. 22812 also set the conservation cost recovery factors for other electric and gas utilities. Only that part of the order allowing TECO to exclude its interruptible customers from conservation cost recovery charges is being challenged.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

TECO's petition presumed that the tariffs filed pursuant to Order No. 20825 were about to expire on March 31, 1990. If TECO was to continue excluding its interruptible customers from imposition of a conservation cost recovery factor for an additional year, it would need PSC authorization to do so.

The PSC, however, in an order denying Public Counsel's motion to reconsider Order No. 20825, had concluded that the tariff appended to TECO's original petition had gone into effect automatically when the PSC failed to act within 60 days of the October 28, 1988, filing. That tariff was not limited in duration. There was nothing to extend unless the PSC was incorrect in its Order No. 21448 and in its position before the Court that Order 20825 was mere surplusage. PSC consideration of TECO.s petition to extend its conservation cost recovery methodology must be considered a concession that TECO never implemented its original tariff automatically under the file-and-suspend law, Section 366.06 (4), Florida Statutes (1989), and that Public Counsel was denied a clear point of entry into the agency process that granted TECO's first petition to exclude interruptibles from conservation cost recovery.

TECO sought to prove its case at hearing through the testimony of its employee, Mr. Kordecki. On direct examination, Mr. Kordecki testified that TECO's interruptible customers should not have to pay for conservation because they receive none of the benefits intended to flow from conservation. He said they do not benefit

from deferring the construction of additional generating capacity, and they do not benefit from reduced fuel consumption. On cross-examination, however, Mr. Kordecki conceded that TECO's interruptibles received some capacity deferral benefits and that all customers were equally affected by decreased fuel usage. Considering the evidence in its totality, TECO failed to prove its case.

The PSC has required all electric utilities under its jurisdiction to collect for approved conservation programs equally from all customers since the first conservation cost recovery factors were approved in 1981. There is inadequate evidence in the record of this proceeding to support a departure from that nonrule policy. TECO's petition was inconsistent with FEECA and the PSC's prior interpretations of FEECA that the legislative intent was to reduce the nominal quantities of fuel burned for electric generation.

The PSC relied on extraneous factors outside the record of the hearing held on TECO's petition, contrary to Section 120.57 (1)(b)8, Florida Statutes (1989). Additionally, the PSC violated Section 120.66, Florida Statutes (1989), by permitting staff members who advocated in favor of TECO's position to make the final recommendation on which the PSC acted to approve TECO's petition.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE PSC WAS RELUCTANT TO CONCLUDE TECO HAD NOT JUSTIFIED THE RELIEF IT SOUGHT BECAUSE TO DO SO WOULD DEMONSTRATE THAT THE PSC'S DECISION ON TECO'S EARLIER PETITION HAD BEEN IN ERROR.

Order No. 22812, the subject of this appeal, must be evaluated in light of the procedures employed by the PSC on TECO's first petition. TECO had asked for a permanent change in the manner in which the costs of conservation programs were recovered from its customers. The PSC voted on January 31, 1989, to approve TECO's petition — but only for one year. The change was approved as a proposed agency action. Under this procedure, substantially affected persons would be given an opportunity to protest the agency's tentative action and request a hearing.

In spite of the vote, Order No. 20825 was issued on March 1, 1989, as a final order. 89 F.P.S.C. 3:15. Public Counsel moved for reconsideration on March 16, 1989. The PSC denied the motion in Order No. 21448. 89 F.P.S.C. 6:476. The PSC said it did not have to provide a point of entry for three reasons: (1) Public Counsel had foregone an opportunity to participate at the agenda conference; (2) Public Counsel waived any deficiency in procedures by stipulating to a cost recovery factor in the conservation docket where the vote was implemented; and (3) the order complained of was of no force and effect because the vote was taken more than 60 days after the petition was filed, so the tariff appended to the petition had gone into effect automatically pursuant to the

provisions of Section 366.06(3), Florida Statutes (1987), the fileand-suspend law for electric utilities.

The PSC said Order No. 20825 was unnecessary, characterizing it as "surplusage:"

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