### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED SID J. WHITE
AUG 14 1990
CELERK, SUPSEME COUNT
Deputy Clerk

CITIZENS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellants,

vs.

MICHAEL MCK. WILSON, ETC., ET AL.,

Appellees.

Appellees.

ON APPEAL OF ORDER NO. 22812
IN FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. 900002-EG
PETITION OF TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY

# ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE, TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY

LEE L. WILLIS Florida Bar No. 0135071

JAMES D. BEASLEY Florida Bar No. 0178751

Ausley, McMullen, McGehee, Carothers and Proctor Post Office Box 391 Tallahassee, Florida 32302 (904) 224-9115

Attorneys for Tampa Electric Company

#

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

Public Counsel begins Point II of his Brief by reiterating the argument made in Case No. 74,471 to the effect that the Commission, in rendering its decision, modified an industry-wide policy. This simply is not the case. In the Order here on appeal, Order No 22812, the Commission, after a full evidentiary hearing, voted to continue for a one-year period the conservation cost recovery methodology approved approximately a year earlier in Docket No. 881416-EG. The Commission did not "adopt incipient Instead, the Commission responded directly to the particular concerns expressed by Tampa Electric regarding the inappropriateness of charging a conservation cost recovery factor to Tampa Electric's interruptible and standby interruptible customers. As was the case a year earlier, Tampa Electric explained the basis for its request in its petition and the Commission and its Staff carefully considered that basis. No. 22812 fully explains the basis for the action taken by the Commission with references to the transcript of the hearing where these considerations were presented.

As the Commission recognizes in Order No. 22812, interruptible customers can be interrupted during peak conditions and the utility does not build capacity to serve these customers. Consequently, the

interruptible capacity deferral benefits. customers receive no Furthermore, Commission Order No. 22812 explains that Tampa Electric's interruptible customers do not presently receive a reduction in fuel costs, which is the other benefit generated by conservation programs. This, the Order explains, is attributable to the fact that Tampa Electric burns spot market coal on the margin which costs considerably less than the average cost of fuel. The Order carefully explains that, according to Tampa Electric's witness, interruptible customers will not experience any fuel savings until well after the expiration of the proposed one-year extension of the conservation reallocation. (Order 22812 at page 5.)

Given the above findings, it was incumbent upon the Commission to approve a one-year extension of the cost recovery reallocation. Slipping back into his reargument of Case No. 74,471, Public Counsel cites a string of decisions in a vacuum at pages 19-20 of his Initial Brief to imply that Order No. 22812 somehow fails to "explain and defend the adoption of incipient policy." In actuality, the Commission fully explained and defended its basis for extending for one year the cost reallocation it had initially approved a year earlier. Public Counsel simply has ignored pages 4 and 5 of Order No. 22812.

In describing the general duties of a public utility, 6366.03, Fla. Stat., states in part:

II. . . . No public utility shall make or give any undue or unreasonable preference or advantage to any person or locality, or subject the same to any undue or unreasonable prejudice or disadvantage in any respect." (Emphasis supplied.)

Under the above-quoted provision, it was incumbent upon Tampa Electric to propose, and the Comm ssion to approve, relieving Tampa Electric's

interruptible customers from the obligation to fund programs from which they derive no benefit.

# A. The Decision Reached in Commission Order No. 22812 is Fully Supported by Evidence in the Record.

The tone of Public Counsel's Initial Brief plunges again, beginning at page 20, with the suggestion that the Commission, in entering Order No. 22812, was predisposed to grant Tampa Electric's request for a one-year extension and simply sifted through the evidence to find something supportive of that outcome. We will not dignify Public Counsel's comments in this regard with a response other than to say that they have no place in an appellate brief. Public Counsel begins the argument by challenging the length of the various segments of testimony submitted by Tampa Electric's witness. Tampa Electric is not aware of any cases holding that brevity is reversible error, even when competent substantial evidence otherwise supports the decision rendered.

The first substantive argument in this section of Public Counsel's Initial Brief appears on page 22, where Public Counsel suggests that there might be some type of benefit to interruptible customers flowing from conservation programs. However, Mr. Kordecki clearly testified in the proceeding below that interruptible customers receive absolutely no capacity deferral benefits and that this absence of benefits was the primary reason Tampa Electric proposed to exempt interruptible customers from payments for conservation programs, at least on a temporary basis. (Tr. 139)

Public Counsel next contends that Tampa Electric's witness did not

". . .establish a rational relationship between the lack of capacity deferral benefits (as he defines the term), and forgiveness from conservation cost recovery."

The above-quoted statement totally ignores the principle of allocating costs based upon cost causation. If there are no benefits accruing to interruptible customers from conservation programs which are designed to defer capacity, these customers should not have to bear the burden of funding such a program. Public Counsel had a full opportunity to present evidence of any capacity-related benefit accruing to interruptible customers, but failed to do so. The record compelled a conclusion that these interruptible customers do not benefit from capacity deferral and, therefore, should not pay for that deferral.

On pages 24 and 25, Public Counsel discusses the earlier closure of certain interruptible rates by the Commission in 1985. From this, Public Counse jumps to the unsupported and erroneous conclusion that Tampa Electric has excess capacity and that

". . .the purpose of TECO's request was simply to reduce rates to encourage increased usage by interruptibles."

This is absolute pure speculation on the part of Public Counsel and is totally contrary to the situation in which Tampa Electric found itself during the winter freeze of 1989 and in subsequent capacity shortages throughout Peninsular Florida.

On pages 25-26 of his Initial Brief, Public Counsel contends that interruptible customers may have achieved some type of fuel savings through the deferral of a combustion turbine unit that would have come on line in 1990 without the effects of conservation programs. On the top of page 26,

Public Counsel acknowledges that Tampa Electric's witness testified that he had netted these benefits out in his calculations so that interruptible customers would receive no such benefits if the one-year extension of the reallocation were granted. During cross-examination, Mr. Howe asked:

"Have you asked for any recovery factor to be imposed on interruptible customers to recover that incremental savings?'' (Tr. 156)

To this Mr. Kordecki responded:

"A. No, because on a net basis there is none.'' (Id.)

Mr. Kordecki reiterated again on page 157 of the transcript that the combustion turbine related fuel savings were netted out in his calculations.

Public Counsel goes on to contend that Tampa Electric did not explain any basis for departing from the previous methodology of charging a conservation cost recovery factor to all customers, including interruptible This is simply erroneous. Tampa Electric's basis for customers. temporarily exempting its interruptible customers from paying conservation programs had its genesis in the unique situation, described both in Docket No. 881416-EG and in the hearing below, that Tampa Electric's marginal cost of fuel currently is lower than the average cost of fuel -- a significant change from the relationship which existed in Because marginal fuel costs are currently less than average costs, the benefits that any of our customers might receive from cheaper spot purchases are either being diminished or eliminated due to conservation That current and temporary relationship constitutes the "changed circumstances" which Public Counsel refuses to recognize.

At the bottom of page 26, Public Counsel again speculates that Tampa Electric's position is to encourage increased electric usage by

interruptibles. This is pure speculation and is not supported by the transcript page references cited by Public Counsel in support of such statement.

On the bottom of page 26 through the middle of page 28, Public Counsel contends that Tampa Electric has misinterpreted the Florida Energy and Efficiency Conservation Act ("FEECA") by construing that Act to require utilities to reduce the growth rate and energy consumption when it is cost-effective to do so. The condition regarding cost-effectiveness is made clear in §366.81 which states:

"The Legislature finds and declares that it is critical to utilize the most efficient and cost-effective energy conservation systems in order to protect the health, prosperity, and general welfare of the state and its citizens. ..."

This was mirrored in Fla. Admin. Code Rule 25-17.001 where the Commission has stated:

"(2) The Florida Energy Efficiency and Conservation Act requires increasing the efficiency of the electric and natural gas systems of Florida and the end use of these sources of energy by reducing weather sensitive peak demand, oil consumption and kilowatt hour consumption to the extent cost-effective." (Emphasis suppl ied.)

Quite clearly it would be contrary to the interests of the state and all customer classes to pursue conservation under circumstances where it is not cost-effective to utility ratepayers. As Tampa Electric has indicated in this proceeding, the current situation is a temporary one in which the marginal cost of fuel is lower than average cost. This accounts for the fact that the Order on appeal only excluded interruptible customers from having to pay for these programs for a one-year period.

Public Counsel's erroneous interpretation of FEECA ignores basic fairness. As we pointed out in response to a similar argument, in Case No. 74,471, the primary reason for Tampa Electric's conservation cost recovery reallocation, as was explained in Tampa E ectric's initial petition, was that interruptible and standby customers should not have to pay for conservation programs which do not benefit them. If it is inequitable to charge a particular class of customers for a particular item of expense, that class of customers should be exempt from paying for that expense regardless of the impact the exemption has on their energy consumption. For example, when the cost of fuel goes down and, as a result, the fuel adjustment factor is lowered, Tampa Electric's customers experience reduced electric bills which may, in fact, stimulate higher electric consumption. Surely Public Counsel would not contend that the fuel factor should not be reduced because of the potential impact that could have on energy consumption.

Quite clearly, FEECA does not stand for the proposition that no action can be taken if it is likely to cause an increase in energy consumption by the customers of Commission regulated utilities.

Moreover, since the total dollars being collected by Tampa Electric are the same whether spread among all customers or only to firm customers, it is reasonable to assume that no perceptible effect on system-wide electric energy consumption will occur because of the one-year extension of the reallocation.

B. Order No. 22812 Adequately Explains the Commission's Basis for Approval of a One-Year Extension of Tampa Electric Company's Conservation Cost Reallocation.

Point IIB. of Public Counsel's Brief essentially is a restatement of Point IIA. of Public Counsel's Brief to the effect that the Commission, in entering Order No. 22812, failed to adequately explain its basis for the one-year extension of Tampa Electric's conservation cost reallocation. Again, Public Counsel overlooks the fact that Order No. 22812 extends for a one-year period the reallocation approved in Docket No. 881416-EG, which is the subject of Public Counsel's appeal in Case No. 74,471. Moreover, Public Counsel's argument overlooks the content of Order No. 22812 where the Commission explains the basis for its approval as well as the record of the hearing conducted on February 21, 1990 that gave rise to that order.

Based on the comments appearing on pages 28-29 of his Initial Brief, Public Counsel apparently believes that the Commission must address each and every argument and case cited by Public Counsel in order to properly approve the one-year extension sought by Tampa Electric. Again, the standard is whether the ultimate decision of the Commission is supported by competent substantial evidence in the record. The Commission is not required to include a summary of testimony it hears or to recite every fact on which it rules in reaching a decision. Occidental Chemical Company v. Mayo, 352 So.2d 336 (Fla. 1977).

Public Counsel refers to the "method of recovery" portion of Order No. 9974 issued on April 24, 1981 in Docket No. 810050-PU. That discussion of a method of recovery appears in the Appendix to Public Counsel's Initial Brief at page A-27. In that decision the Commission, in a much briefer

fashion than that criticized by Public Counsel in Order No. 22812, concluded:

"However, Mr. Brubaker acknowledged that, to the extent conservation efforts succeed in obviating the need for expensive new plant, all customers will benefit. Because all customers will enjoy the benefits of such cost avoidance we direct that the authorized costs be recovered from all customers on a per kilowatt hour or per therm basis. .."

In the instant proceeding, Tampa Electric presented evidence squarely distinguishing the basis upon which the Commission had earlier decided that all customers should share in the costs associated with conservation programs. As Public Counsel concedes, Tampa Electric's witness testified that interruptible customers receive no capacity deferral benefits. (Public Counsel's Initial Brief at page 29). Public Counsel goes on to erroneously state that the Tampa Electric witness, Mr. Kordecki, conceded on cross-examination that interruptibles do, in fact, receive capacity deferral benefits. Id. at 29. This is erroneous and is no where supported in the record. Mr. Kordecki went on to explain that, at least for the one-year period addressed in Tampa Electric's Petition, a fuel cost penalty results from conservation. (Tr. 129; 139-140)

Tampa Electric's record basis for relieving its interruptible customers from conservation program funding, again for a temporary one-year period, is carefully explained by the Commission in Order No. 22812 at pages 4-5. Thus, to the extent there has been any deviation from a prior Commission policy, that deviation is adequately supported by the record below and explained by the Commission in the Order on appeal.

Public Counsel refers again to his contention that Tampa Electric failed to recognize the deferral of a 1990 combustion turbine and,

therefore, understated fuel cost savings to interruptible customers.

Again, however, as Mr. Kordecki testified, these savings were netted out of

Mr. Kordecki's cost benefit analysis. (Tr. \_\_\_\_; R-36)

Next on page 30, Public Counsel faults the Commission for not explaining why it is appropriate to exclude interruptibles but not firm customers in light of the fact that lost fuel savings from conservation apply to all classes of customers. Public Counsel fails to recognize that the analysis of fuel savings was performed in order to demonstrate that interruptible customers obtain no savings (either capacity deferral related or fuel related) from conservation and, therefore, should not contribute toward the utility's conservation programs. The observation, however, did not establish that firm customers do not benefit from capacity deferral benefits associated with conservation programs.

All in all, Point IIB. of Public Counsel's Initial Brief fails to recognize that the very things demanded by Public Counsel to support the action taken below either are contained in the record of the February 21, 1990 hearing and addressed in Order No. 22812 or they are unnecessary because the demand therefor is predicated on Public Counsel's erroneous interpretations of the record.

Public Counsel has failed to demonstrate that the decision below lacks the support of competent substantial evidence of record or that the Commission, in rendering such decision, departed from the essential requirements of law.

#### POINT III

# THE PROCEDURE BELOW DID NOT VIOLATE \$120.66, FLA. STAT.

In Point II of his argument Public Counsel raises a new issue involving an interpretation of §120.66(1)(a), Fla. Stat. This issue was not raised before the Commission. Even if it had been, it would have been properly rejected by the Commission.

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